'NITED NATIONS

CONOMIC
\ND
OCIAL COUNCIL

GENERAL

E/CN.4/SR.311
12 June 1952

_ENGLISE

ORIGINAL: FRENCH

COMMISSION OF EUMAN RIGETS

.. T®ighth Session
&M\IAE¥ EEG@BD OF THE THREE JUFDIED ANDR E-lEVEN'PB NERTING,-.-

Held at Headquaorters, New York,
on Tuesday, 27 May 1952, at 10.55 a.m.

Draft international covenants on humen rights and measures of
implementation (E/1992; E/CN.4/528, E/CN.k/528/4dd.1, E/CN.4/643,
E/cN.b4/L..68, B/CN.4/L,122, BfCN.4/L.130, E/CN.4/L.140, E/CN.4/L.159,
E/CN.4/L.160, E/CH.4/L.176, B/CR.M/L.177, E/CN.4/L.178, E/CN.4/L.179,
E/CN.4/L.180, E/CN,4/L.181, E/CN.4/1..182) (continued): earticle 3

CONTEITS:;
(continued); article &
Chailrman: Mr. CASSIN
later Mr. MALIK
Rapporteurs: Mr. WHITLAM
Membere: "I.‘*i"!f. NIS0T
Mr. SANTA CRUZ )
Mr. VALENZUELA )
Mr. CHENG PAONAN
ATMI Bey )
. Mr. GHORBAL )
Mr. KYROU
52.- 6557

(12 p.)

France)
Lebanon)

Austrelia

.Belgium

Chile
China
Epypt

Croeeceoe

. ——

— e



i R s

E/CN.4/SR.311
Page 2

Members (continued):

Mrs. MEETA Tndia
My, WAHEED - Pakisten
Mr. BORATYNSKT - Poland
Mres. ROSSEL - Sweden
Mr. KOVALENKO Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic
Mr, MOROZOV Union of Sovist Socialist Republics
Mr. HOARE United Kingdom of Great Britein and
Rorthern Ireland
Me. SIMSARTAN United States of America
o o ) o
Mr. JEVRRMOVIC Tugoslevie
Representatives of specialized agencies: . .
"~ I, PICITORD - . - In‘ernstional Lebour Orgenisation (II0)
Me. EILL Vorld Eealth Orgenization (WEO)
Representatives of non-goxmnmentgl organizations:
~h 9 -
Mr. de BROECK " Catholis Intermetional Union for . -
\ Social Service
Mr. NOLIE Commiesion of the Churches on
International Affairs
Mr, MOSIOWITZ Consultative Council of Jewish
' Organizations

Mrz, PATSONS )

Mrs CAEZTR ) International Council of Women

Mra. SOUTAN Isxternationsl Federation of Professional
end Buainess Yomen

Mra, ROEB Internatcional Federation of University
Women

Mrs. CAFTIR Lizison Commitiee of Woments Inteor-
nationel Orgznizatlions

Mr. JACCBY World Juowish Congress

Mr. RONAZZS )
Mra., POISTEIN )
Mra. FARBER )

Mre. CARMTCHAEL )  World Urion of Catholis Women's
' Miss SCEALFER ) Orgenizations.

World Union for Progressive Judeism

/Sscretariat




e ] A - - . =

Page 3
Secretariat: Mr. HUMPEREY Director; Division of Human Rights
: . mu ms ) .
 Mies KITCHN ) 'Seoretaries of the Commiesion

DRAFT INTERNATTONAL COVENANTS ON ETMAN RIGETS AND MFASURES OF IMPLEMENTATION
(E/1992; E/CN.4/528, E/CN.b/528/Add.1, E/cu.4/643, E/CN.4/L.68, E/CN.b4/L.122,
E/cw.b/L.130, E/CN.4/L.1b0, B/CN.4/L.159, E/CN.4/L.160, E/CN.4/L.176,
E/CN.4/L.177, E/CN.4/L.178, E/CN.4/1..179, E/CH. h/L 180, E/CN.4/1.181,
E/oN.4/1.182) (continued)

Article 3 {continued)

Mrs, HOSSEL (Sveden) felt, like the Uruguayan representative, that
respect for human life required that a covenant on humen rights should, as one of
1ts main principles, provide for the abolition of capital punishment. As it
stood, article 3 of the draft govenant approved the maintenance of that penalty
in countries where it already existed. Contrary to what had been said,article 3
of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights did not Justify such recognition,and
there should therefore be a mention of that article in paragraph 1 of the article
the Commission would adopt. She thought that the words "in the execution of a
sentence of a couft,or" in paragraph 2 of article 3, as well as paragraphs 3 and
4, should be deleted. Sweden had abolished the death penalty by law in 1921,
although it had then not been applied for a long time.

Her delegetion was in favour of a mention of the Convention on
Genocide, a8 article 3 was._not in contradiction with 1t.

Mr. WHIfLAM (Austrelia) accepted peragrerh 1 of the USSR emendment
(E/CN.4/L.122) 1n substitution for erticle 3, paragraph 1, but opposed the
word "arbitrsrily" in polmt 1 of the Joint Chilean sznd United States amendment
(E/CN.4/1..176). In reply to those who held that the use of the word "erbitrary"
in erticle 6 justified that of "arditrerily” in erticle 3, he recalled that
arbitrary hod been inciuded in article 6 only after 2 long debete, and on
the understanding thet 1t wou}duho givcp,new consideration. As Mr. Lauterpacht

/had emphasized,



fi ’mqw

EfCN.b/SR.31Y
Page b

had emphasized, erticle 3 was basie, and the word Marbitrarily” wes too
ambimuous to be included in 1t. VWhile "arbitrary” could conceivably be
uged to oualify detenticn or sxrrest, it could not be appllied to deprivation
of 1ife, The compromiee solution in point 1 of the Joint amendment was
anything bul an improvement can the exleting text, and the Ausiralian delege-
tion could not vote for 1it, '

Mr. Malik (lebanon) teok the Chair.

The CHAIRMAN esked whether the Cormissicn would receive the Delgien
emoncment (E/CN.4/L.182) which bel been submitted after the time 1imit for
submitting amendments to the Qvaft covenant had alapeed.

The Commissior. deqidad recgaive the mendment.

Mr. MOROZOV (Union of Soviet Sooisiiet Republice) said that his
delegation was not oppocod either to the montion of the Convention on Genoolde
or to points 2 and 3 of the Joint amendment (E/CN.k/L.176).

Mre. MERTA (Trdla) withdrew her amendment (E/1992, ammex ITT,
section A), and would vcte in Pavour of the United States amendment
(E/ow.b/1,130).

Mr. BOARE (United Kingdom) essocisted himself with the Australian
representative's remarks on the word "arbdbitrarily”. The adoption of that
word wes very dengerous, se 1t might mermit States to complain to the proposed
Committee on Humen Rights at any time in respect of almost any 6eeprivat10n of
life which occurred in another State.

Mr. CASSIN (France) oriticized the text of point 1 of the joint
amendment (E/CN.4/L.176) which, inotesd of proclsiming the right to life,
stated: "No one shell be arbitrerily deprived of hisc life” and cor;sequemt],v
deslt only with reletlcris between the State and individuals, disregarding the .
question of protection of life ao cmong individuels.

The United Stetes emendmert (E/CN.4/L.130) should satisfy the Indian
delegation, as 1t provided an equivalent for self-defence for the benefit of
countries which did not recognize thaet concept,

/Be would



E/CN.b /SR.311
Page 5

He would support the Yugoslav amendments (E/CN.4/L.178,E/CN.4/L.179,
E/CN.4/L.180) inserting a mention of the Convention on Genocide. Even if they
ware rejected, article 18 of the original text covered that Convention,which
France had already ratified. As the existing text of article 3 had been adopted
after a long discussion, it should not be altered without good cause.

Mr. SANTA CRUZ (Chile) sald that the word "arbitrerily" was intended
to 1imit the ceses of deprivation of life. He sgreed that the word was vegue,
but érow the Australien reprosentetive'’s sttention to the fact that 1t appeared
not only in article € of the covenant, but also in articles 12 and 15 of the
Declarstion, vhere 1t was used in a positive sense.

The CEAIRMAN suggested thet the United Kingdom emendment (E/CN.L/L.140)
should be put to the vote firset, as it wes further removed from the text of
article 3 than the USSR emendment (E/CN.b/L.122).

Mr. MOROZdV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) remerked that the
USSR amendment not only had been submitted earlier thsn the United Kingdom
amendment, but was further removed from the substance of erticle 3, That
article contelned an enumeration of exceptionel casee, which the United Kingdom
amendment would emplify, whereas the USSR amondment was based on the text
adopted by the Commission at. its f£if'th eseasion. He therefore moved that the
Commissicn should first vote on the USSR emern-uent.

Tt wes decided, by 7 votes to 2, with 8 ebstentlons, to vote first
on the USSR amendment (E/CN.%/L.122).

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the Yugoslav amendment (E/CN.4/L.179)
to the USSR emendment (E/CN.h/L.122), ;
That amendment wvas sdopted by 13 votas to 2, with 3 abstentioms.

The CHAIRMAN put to the vote point 1 of the jJoint amendment

(E/CN.4/1,.176) to the USSR amendment. i
Point 1 of the joint smendment wes sdopted by 10 votes to 5, with

3 abtentions. : :

/The CHATRMAN



F mﬂfm,

k[N 4 /8R.311

Page 6

- The .CHATRMAN pui; to the vote peregraph 1 of the USSR amendment
(E/cn.h/L.Jze) as smended. ’
- . heragraph 1 of the USSB amwdment as e.meMed Wa.g a.dopted A_l_‘ votes
tok, with 2 abstantions. i

Mr. MOROZOY (Bnicn of Soviet Socislist Ropublics) accepted. pom'bs
2 and 3 of the Joint amendriont (x/cn L/L.176).

‘he CHATHMAN put to the yote peragraphs 2 and 3 of the USSR emendment,

thus a.mmded :
Those paragraphs vers adopted by 1l votes to 1, with 3 adstentions.

Mr, CASSIN (France) requested that his amendment (E/CN.4/L.160),
proposing the deletion of the vord "amneety" ih the firat sentence of'pamgraph b,
might be regarded as applying to paregreph L of the USSR amendment which wes
mentma.l vith paregraph 4 of exrticle 3 of the dreft covenant.

' The Prench amordment was ado _gtmi hy 11 votes to I, vith 3 absteations.

M. HORJQDV (Union of ooviet Socialist Republics) explained 'chat he .
ad reslized only aftor the vote tiat the French amendment applied to the word
“ammesty" in the Pfirst sentence of paragmph L. He bad voted against it under

. %“he mistakon impressicn that ths word we to 'ba deleted in the secand sentence .
a8 well.

The CEATRMAN put to the vote paragraph b of the USSR amendment,
as amended. | Rt
Fexegraph U, as mnended, wes adopted by 13 votes to 1, with L spstentioms,

Mr. JEVREMOVIC (Yugoslevia) requested that his amsmiment (E/1992,
annex III, section A) should be put to the vote as an emendment to the USSR text.

AZMI Bey (Egypt) asked the Yugoalay representative to revise hig

enendment to read: "Sentam.o of death sizll not be Tt into effect vhere the
gentence concerns A pregrant, woman”, :

/Mr, JEVREMOVIC



T e e T TETS—

E/CN.4/SR.311

Page T /ﬂ?
Mr. JEVREMOVIC (Yugoslavia) eccepted that chenge.

Mr. NISOT (Belgium) pointed out that the amendment could be taken
elther literally or as applying solely to the period preceding chilii-bi_;‘th.

Mr, HOARE (United Kingdom) fslt that the sentence should read:
"Sentence of death slall not be carried out on & pregnant woman”, '

Mr., JEVREMOVIC (Yugoslevia) eccepted tiat drafting change,
The Yugoslav amerdment wag adopied by 12 votes to 1, with 5 apstentions.
The new article 3, a8 & irhola was adovted by 1l votes to b, irith

3 apstentions.

. KYRCU (Greeco) explained that he had voted for most paregraphs
in the article, but that, for reesons he had given earlier, he had voted against
the text as'a whole. He preferred the old toxt of art:lcle 3 with a few amendments

Mr. CASSIN (France) ad deen regretfully compelled to vote against
the new article 3, feeling tiat the text, while appearing to safeguard the right
to life, in fact permitted vioclations of ¢that right., He hoped that the article
would be changed subsequently.

Mr, FORTEZA (Uruguay) had voted against the article and all the
amendments to it, in epite of the fact that his dolegation w.s not opposged to
some of them, because by that text the Commission had samtioned t.he reprehensible
principle that the dsath penalty was permissible,

Mr. JEVREMOVIC (Yugoslavia) had voted for the article as a whole,
but retained certain douhts as regards the word "arpitrarily” and reserved the
right to come bhack to it. A

Mrs. MEETA (India) had voted agninst article 3 because she preferred
the origimal text, which bad been carefully drawn up by the Commission after a
thorough debate, - :

Jer. HOARE



& mﬂw

E/CN.4/SR.311
Page 8

Mr, HOARE (United Kingdom) had voted against the inclusion of the word
"arbitrarily" for ressons stated previously. He had abstained in the vote on the
Yugoslav sub-amendment (E/CN.4/L.179) as he had some doubt concerning the legal
consequences of mentioning the Convention on the Preventi_o;i an& Punishment of the
Crime of Genocide in the text of the article. He had also abstained on the last
two pafagraphs vhich he thought were umnecessary. lastly, he had felt some doubt
whether he should not have voted against the article as a whole, since he fully
shared the French represertative's view but he had not gone beydﬁd abstaining on
the article as a whole, '

, Mr. WHITIAM (Australin) had not voted against the text as a whole
because be had not wished to oppose certain provisions of the article completely,

he had therefore merecly anstaimed, though he fully associated himself with the
French representative!s romarks,

Mrs. ROSSEL (Swoden) sald tnat she supported only the first part of
the article vhich read: '"Everyone'e right to life slmll be protected by law”,
She ad abstained on the reat of the article which dealt wit.h capital punishment,
to which her Goverment wis absolutely oppoaed

Mti'cle i
e

The CHAIRMAN invited the Commigeion to examine article & bf the
draft covetent. He read out paregraphs 99 and 100 of document E/CN.L/528.,

Mr. HOARE (United Kingdom) explained the re;ésons for his proposel to
delete the ‘second sentenco in article 4 (E/1992, annex III, section A}, The
sentence vas based on the desire to prevent eny repetition of the horritle
experiments carried out in the Nazl concentretion cemps, He understood and
shared the feeling of abhcrrence which had caused the provision to be included;
he did not think, however, that its drafting was satisfactory, and felt that the
first sentence of article L, couched in generml terms, sufficiently covered the
special aspect of the question dealt with in the second rert of the article,

The VWorld Health Organization hed given its opinion that the phrage
involved mo legal obligntion which was not already contained in the firat part

/of the article



e — e ¥ e e AT | R ol e [Pl

E/CN.L/SR.311
Page 9

of the artlcls, and had emphasized the difficulty of drafting the provision in
such a way as to preclude any possibility of misuse. The United Kingdom
delegation shared thét view, Indeed, on the one hand, the proposed prohibition
wae likely to stand in the way of certain perfectly lbgitimate scientific
expériments involving only slight danger to %he individuals concerned, and could
therefore delay progress of médical sclence. On the other, it might give rise
elther to excessive limitations or new abuses. Thus, a surgeon,‘faced with a
nev situstion while operating on en unconscicus patient might be precluded from
attempting & new technique; and on the other hand the text implied that medical
experimentation which was positively required by a patient's state of health
could be undertaken without his consent. That was why the United Kingdom
delegation asked for the deletion of the sentence.

Mr. JEVREMOVIC (Yugoslavia) stated that the first sentence of his
amendment (E/1992, annex III, section A) was designed to prevent the inducement
of persons to undergo surgical operations for fimancial gain at the risk of
serious mutilation. The second sentence of the amendment would make it possible
to perform certain general experiments in speciasl cases. '

Mr. CASSIN (France) noted that there were two kinds of amendments
before the Commissibn; those which weakened the original text of article 4, and
those which strengthened it. The United Kingdom amendment (E/1992, annex III,
page 30) which deleted the second sentence of article 4 was anong the former, In
Justification of his amendment, the United Kingdom representative had pointed out
that the second sentence added nothing to the first Bentgnce of the artlcle which
was sufficiently general in scope. The United Kingdom representative's reﬁarks
in that connexion had been ifrélévant. The lﬁfter had spoken only about persons
whose health was in danger. The medlical experiments referred to in the second
sentence of article 4 did not, however, apply to sick persons who were to be
cared for; its purpose was to profect the healthy. If the covenant recognized
the right to lifé, it must certainly protect healthy persons from being subjected
against theif will to medicallof scientific experiments dangerous to fhsir health.

Article 4 as drafted by the Commission had been highly praised,
particularly by the Committee on thé Public Health of the five countries. One of
the articles of its terms of reference required that medical experiments on sick
persons should be of real medical importance; that they should not only be in the
patient's interest, but also not involve any risk of injuring his health'and

lestly, that they should be carried out with his consent. Those conditions were
even more essential in the case of healthy pesrsons. /he emphasized



| i""-"---1-——1-|vrw-r-|I'—"II-"l——--l-—w.E,-
E/CN.4/SR.311
Page 10 -

He énmméi'zéd that the question was extremely important from the moral
point of view., There were still a great many people in France whose health had
been iireparably damged &8 & result of experiments to which they hed heen
suhjected in concentretion camps, It was essential to prevent any .recurr_ence
of such crimirzl experimentaticn. The Fremnch delegation was therefore opposed
to the United Kingdom amendment, ]

The Yugoslav and French amendments, (E/l°92 , annex III, page 30,
E/CN.4/L.159) on the other band, strengbhened article 4, The French delegation
realized timt to act egainst a person’'s will, or to act without his consent,
wvere +two Qiffercnt wmatters. The obtaining'of consent vas & positive
condition. If it wae required in the cese of sick persons, there was 'evqn moYe
reason to require it in the cage of healthy ones,

Mr. HILL (VWorld Health Organization) said that WHO had shown a deep

interest at the sixth session of the Commission in the provisions of articles
S and 7 of the original éraft coverant, In the course of 1ts consultations with

the World Medical Association end the Intermational Cowncil of Nurses thé
difficulties of article T md become apperent. The Director-General of WHO had
pointed out at the time that the proviaions of article 5 weres adequate. Since
then, articles $_angl 7 bad been merged into what was now article L4, WHO
continued t0 feel that the first sentence of article L adequately settled all
general problems connected with medical and ecientific experiments on human beings.
The second sentence might only complicate matters and hold up the progrees of
meodical science. WHO urderstood and shared the feeling or horror at the
experimentation carried cut in the concentration camps but it believed that
certain experiments, if performed in tho propor conditicns, were necessary to
scientific development '

Mr, NISOT (Bele;ium)‘, addressing in particular the French repreéentative,
said he feared tiat article 4 would lave %o be imterpreted, a_contrario, as
pemitting the subJection of a patient ageinat his will to medical or sclentific
experimentation involving riek.

/Mr. HOARE



= e e T =T ee— T A e P R — e i
*—W‘" 1 - ]

E/CN.4/SR.311
Page 11

Mr. HOARE (United Kingdom) agreed with the French representative on
the need to prevent any recurrence of the monstrous -exp_er'i:_:ieqts carried on by
the Nazis, but he thought that the £irst sentence of article b achieved that.
purpcse. He denied that his remarks had been irrelevant. There was nothing to
show that the provisions of article I did not apply to sick persons, as the
article did not commit itself in one way or another eoncermning the state of
health of the persons in question; consequently the second sentence applied to
the sick and healthy alike. '

AZMI Bey(Egypt) did not agree with the representatives of the United
Kingdom and WHO who were too much concerned with sick persons. Article L gave
full latitude for experiments on sick persons; if a person's state of health
made an operation necessary, it had to be performed. He added that the United
 Kingdom amendment also omitted the word "cruel", which unduly limited the scope
of the flrst sentence.

His delegation would therefore vote against the United Kingdom
anendment (E/1992, annex III, page 30).

Mr, CASSIN (France) pointed out to the Belgilan representative that the
answer to hie question was contained in article 4 itself. Cases of sick persons
to be cared for would be governed by the laws on and the practices of the
medical profession in the different States.

' He added that some time ago the éommission had asked WHO for
recommendations on how to improve the text of article 4 , and the representative
of that organization had merely emphasized exlisting differences of opinion. in
medical circles. The Commission should therefore retain the text as 1t stood
unless a better one was submitted to it. '

Mr. HOARE (United Kingdom) had deleted the word "¢ruel" in the first
part of article 4 because he thought it superfluous, the word "inhuman" being
already in the text. He was, however, vrepared to restore it. The Egyptian
representative was right in saying that operations must be performed if necessary

. for the patient's health, even if the patient was unconscious and unable to give
his consent. But the second sentence would vreclude any experimental use of a
new teclnique in the course of such operations in any case wherc it was not
posltively required to save life. /Mr STMSARTAN



— E—————

— T ————— T —— T

g _ R —
E/CN.b/SR.311
Tage 12

Mr. SIMSARIAN (United States of America) thought that the French and
Yugoslay amendments (£ /cm. /1,150, Ef1992, armex III, page 30) weakemed the
protection afforded to individuals by article 4. Indesd, & person's consent
might be ohtained by illegal means and even by violence. The expressicn "against
his Will" vent further tian the words "without his consent”. The Tngoelav
amendment might imply thab a8 medinal 1nst1tution coula eutiorize an exoeriment
against a person's will, \

Be asked that a soparete vote should he taken on the phrase
"where such is not resuired by his stats of physical or mental health".

Mr, VAIZNZUEIA (Calile) folt tbat sentiment chould mot sater into the
discussion of legal texts, The amalysis of t .2 provieions of article 4 had
showvn that the gecond sentence applied to only & special csse of the treatment
referred tc in the “irot centence. The dlscussion should not bs ellowed to
exterd into ths flald of medical ard sclemtific experiments, ard the Commission
should avoid introducirg legal elaments in the covenant vhich had nothing to do-
with medicine, As a legal text, the United Kingd.am amendment (E/1992, ennex III,
page 30) would suffice in the coverant. J

The CHAIRMAN, cpeaking as the reprosentetive of Lebanon, eald that
bis delegation would vote in favour of the first aentencé of article L which
reproduced the text of the Universal Declerction of Humn Rights., He agreed
with the United States represemtative that the last part of the second senience
was not neceseary and might even be dangerous. The French amendment (E/CHN.N/L.15¢
improved the text of the article, Lowsver, and the United States reprosentative's
objJections might be met ty adding the word "free" before the word "consemt™;, 1f
the French representative agreed to that clange.

The meeting rose ¢t 1 p.m.

12/6 p.m.



